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2 December 2015 
 
 
 
Freedom of Information Act 2000 – Request for Information 
 
Thank you for your request for information received on 5 November 2015 in relation 
to the County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust (Trust).  We are dealing 
with your request under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  
 
You requested information regarding the Friends and Family Test. Specifically you 
asked for:  
 
Details of the Trust’s current Friends and Family Test supplier/system: 
 
1. When the service was implemented and the specialties included?  
 
Answer: April 2013  . 
 
2. Monthly values for the numbers of patients surveyed? 
 
Answer: All details are published on NHS England website. 
 
 3. Specific details of any aims/targets set for the Friends and Family Test and 
whether or not these have been achieved?  
 
Answer: The target was to achieve a 20% response rate in ED and a 30% response 
rate in Inpatients, both were achieved some months but not others, there are no 
targets since April 2015. 
 
4. Details of any patient complaints or technical difficulties encountered whilst 
the service is in operation? 
Answer: The completion of the questionnaire is voluntary therefore we have not had 
any official complaint from patients. There have been a couple of problems with the 



 

 

scanning of information from iWGC but nothing that has caused any long term 
problems.  
 
6. Does the Trust survey patients by SMS? 
 
Answer: No. 
 
7. Where are the SMS carriers servers located? 
 
Answer N/A. 
 
If the service uses automated IVR/IVM (Interactive Voice Response/Interactive 
voice Messaging) calls;  
 
8. Where are the servers that undertake these calls located?  
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
9. Do the IVR servers process patient identifiable data?  
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
If the service uses agent calls;  
 
10. What percentage of the overall service outcomes are completed by an 
agent? 
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
11. What information do agents have access to? 
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
12. Are all agents making the calls based in a call centre? 
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
13. Where are the call centres situated? 
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
14. If not what percentage of calls are made by home workers? 
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
15. Geographically, where are the home based workers? 
 



 

 

Answer: N/A. 
 
16. What security measures are in place to prevent home-based workers from 
replicating data locally? 
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
17. Are all home based staff CRB checked? 
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
18. Have you received any complaints at all regarding the agent call service 
(including but not limited to: manner, tone, ability to understand accents or 
dialects)?  
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
19. Please provide details of the member(s) of staff responsible for the 
implementation and continued running of the service and their role within the 
Board? 
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
21. How do you keep personal information secure when transferring to a third 
party supplier? 
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
Supplier Details 
 
Please provide details of:  
 
25. Suppliers(s) of the above services:  
 
Answer: I Want Great Care. 
 
26. Expected contract length: 
 
Answer: 2013-2016 (Plus 1 Year extra for inconvenience at beginning of contract in 
relation to scanning.  
 
27. Contract review date: 
 
Answer: March 2017. 
 
28. Cost of contract:  
 



 

 

Answer: £90,000. 
 
29. Details of the implementation costs and on-going support costs: 
 
Answer: Approximately £10-15k per year for cards. 

30. Details of the processes followed to procure The Friends and Family Test?  
 
Answer:  N/A the service was recommended by the NHS Confederation. 
 
31. Details of the channels used to publish the notification of procurement, for 
the Friends and Family Test service? 
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
Paper Surveys   
 
32. Does the Trust use paper cards to survey patients and if so what 
departments? 
 
Answer: Yes - All departments. 
 
33. Who keys in the data from paper surveys? 
 
Answer: I Want Great Care have systems in place to obtain the results from the 
comment cards. 
 
34. If this is outsourced, what company input this information? 
 
Answer: As above. 
 
Local surveys  
 
35. Does the Trust carry out local surveys? 
 
Answer: Yes – quarterly post discharge survey to 400 patients  . 
 
36. If so, what methods are used to survey patients? 
 
Answer: Postal. 
 
37. If outsourced, what supplier is used? 
 
Answer: N/A. 
 
 
 



 

 

In line with the Information Commissioner’s directive on the disclosure of information 
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 your request will form part of our 
disclosure log. Therefore, a version of our response which will protect your anonymity 
will be posted on the County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust website. 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the information supplied, please do not 
hesitate to contact me on the above telephone number or at the above address. 
 
If you are unhappy with the way your request for information has been handled, you 
can request a review by writing to: 
 
The Chief Executive 
County Durham & Darlington NHS Foundation Trust 
Darlington Memorial Hospital 
Hollyhurst Road 
Darlington 
DL3 6HX 
 
If, you remain dissatisfied with the handling of your request or complaint, you have a 
right to appeal to the Information Commissioner at: 
 
The Information Commissioner’s Office 
Wycliffe House 
Water Lane 
Wilmslow  
Cheshire 
SK9 5AF 
 
Telephone: 0303 123 1113 
Website: www.ico.gov.uk.  
 
There is no charge for making an appeal. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
Joanna Tyrrell 
Freedom of Information Officer 

http://www.ico.gov.uk/

